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QUESTION ANSWER

Will you coordinate the Task Order closing dates and the Annual BOA closing dates to 
prevent interested offerors from having to respond to both at the same time?

The Government's milestones are based on mission requirements; however, the Government will strive to schedule closing with little 
to no overlap.

Under EAGLE II will you open discussions at the Annual BOA level?

The Government intends to execute BOAs without communicating with offerors regarding revisions; however, the Government will 
reserve the right to communicate in the evaluation process and permit offerors to revise their proposals, if deemed necessary.

Will the government please clarify how past performance will be calculated for JV partners?  
In particular, a small business without requisite past performance but JV Partner has past 
performance. (The JV is formed under SBA Mentor-Protégé 8(a) program

As noted during the Industry Day briefing, the Government's intent is to not address the pathforward on upcoming task order 
evaluation processes at this time, as the Task Order RFP language is being reviewed for the follow-on EAGLE effort and is subject 
to change.  On that note, however, the current language in EAGLE task order RFPs states the following in regards to past 
performance for Joint Ventures,

"Please note that for Joint Ventures (JVs), Past Performance references need not be performed by the JV itself. References for efforts 
performed by one or more of the entities comprising the JV, that are otherwise determined as recent and relevant, will be considered 
when evaluating the JV's past performance. In determining relevancy the reference must meet the thresholds for magnitude and 
complexity applicable for the Offeror."

Past Performance will not be evaluated at the BOA competition. 

Why does the Government plan to execute new BOAs? Why can't the BOAs be rolled over? IAW DFARS 216.703 Basic Ordering Agreements, the period during which orders may be placed against a basic ordering 
agreement may not exceed 5 years.  Additionally, the technical standards at the BOA level have been made more stringent to ensure 
the Government has confidence in the technical capabilities of the EAGLE BOA holders at a task order level.  Therefore,  it is 
necessary to issue a new BOA solicitation and to require a new BOA proposal from all interested parties, as some BOA RFP 
documents determined Technically Acceptable will be pulled through to the Task Order, further streamlining the Task Order RFP 
process.  Therefore, it is imperative that offerors desiring to compete for future EAGLE requirements submit a proposal in response 
to this BOA RFP.  

Shared past performance is not allowed among sister companies for BOA prime contract 
holders, correct? Is this still the case with the consideration of Tribally owned companies in 
accordance with the following FAR clause? "Past Performance" will not be evaluated at the BOA level; however, "Experience" is a sub-factor to the Technical evaluation.  In 

regard to Experience, Section M.2.2.3(a)(1) of the draft RFP currently states, "If the offeror is citing its core competencies and 
previous experience through its parent company and/or affiliate(s), the offeror must adequately demonstrate how the resources of the 
parent company and/or affiliate(s) will be utilized in performance of the proposed effort.  NOTE:  The information demonstrating 
that a parent company and/or affiliate(s) resources will be used in the performance of the proposed effort will not necessarily be 
sufficient to apply in Step 3 Task Order Past Performance evaluations."  This language is subject to change in subsequent BOA RFP 
drafts. 

As noted above, the information provided for Experience as it relates to parent and/or affiliate companies may not necessarily apply 
to EAGLE Task Order Past Performance evaluations. With regards to Past Performance at the Task Order as noted during the 
Industry Day briefing, the Government's intent is to not address the pathforward on upcoming task order evaluation processes at this 
time, as the Task Order RFP language is being reviewed for the follow-on EAGLE effort and is subject to change.  On that note, 
however, the current language in EAGLE task order RFPs states the following in regards to past performance for sister companies:

"The Government will assess the contract references provided in the Offeror's BOA proposal, the BOA annual review process, and 
task order proposals to date, data calls, and other information available from sources other than those identified by the Offeror, 
against the past performance evaluation criteria set forth below. The Government will include in its past performance evaluation any 
proposed Teammate and Subcontractor that is expected to perform 20% or more of the total value of column F in the Offerors 
Teaming Matrix (Attachment 0005, Tab 2) for this effort. The Government will confirm a proposed Teammate and Subcontractor is 
expected to perform 20% or more of the total value by referring to column F of the Offerors Teaming Matrix (Attachment 0005, Tab 
2)."

Questions and Answers (Q and As) from Industry Based on 14 October 2016 Draft RFP
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Please confirm that if the majority of capabilities are directly on target within a functional area 
(let’s say 97%), the contractor need not subcontract and can self perform in that functional 
area.  For example, if there is little experience in one or two very small sub elements within 
the large scope of a PWS functional area, can the contractor self certify for that functional area 
and not bring in a subcontractor? 

Confirmed.  Core competency is based on the overall ability to execute a functional area and this must be conveyed through the 
offerors' proposal.

The RFP states: "Offerors are NOT required to propose those subcontractors used to establish 
technical capability in Step Two (i.e. BOA process); however, Offerors shall propose itself 
and/or subcontractors that can meet the evaluation criteria and successfully perform the 
requirements of each Task Order.”    QUESTION: (a) Please confirm how offerors are 
measured in meeting technical capability and a core competency in Step Two.   (b) Do prime's 
have to identify the specific subcontrator in Step 2?

(a) Offerors will be evaulated as indicated at Section M of the BOA RFP.  

(b)  Yes, offeror's are required to indentify specific subcontractors if required to meet the criteria for performing any functional area.  
Further, those identified subcontractors will also be required to have the supporting experience or contract reference as part of the 
proposal as indicated at Section M.

The RFP states, “If the offeror is unable to cite core competencies for self-performing any of 
the EAGLE effort’s functional areas, the offeror must identify its process of identifying, 
vetting, partnering, and leading the required subcontractors (also referred to as teammates or 
sometimes as partners), as well as the offeror’s process for replacing and adding 
subcontractors if necessary due to non-performance or operational changes to the effort.”  
QUESTION: Please confirm that the prime needs to identify in this Step Two process all 
subcontractors that might be proposed for Step Three task orders.  

Offerors DO NOT have to identify any potential subcontractors that may be required during Step Three task orders.  The intent 
under EAGLE II is to allow offerors the flexibility to tailor the proposal to the requirement to include selection of offeror selected 
subcontractors. Additionally, each RFP will identify how and when subcontractor must be identified in the proposal.

Would the government consider a larger page count than 16 pages  – at least 30 pages for the 
TCS?  There is a lot of information requested in this file—from self-performance/core 
competencies to resources/task order management and staffing and transition as well.  

The Government updated the TCS to 20 pages.

Would the government  consider a large page count  than 13 pages for the RSE – the PWS 
alone is 29 pages?

The Government updated the RSE to 14 pages.

Would the government consider more than 1800 characters for each description—it is difficult 
to provide an accurate profile of a contract.

Yes, we will review the form and add space if possible.

Please confirm that character requirements for Attachment 3 do not include spaces (as counted 
using the Tools function for Microsoft Word).

Spaces do count within the Adobe PDF program.

The government is requesting:  “If an offeror proposes recent and/or relevant experience for a 
parent company, affiliate, subcontractor, or another team member with a different CAGE code, 
the offeror shall include information demonstrating how the resources of the parent company, 
affiliate, or subcontractor will be utilized in performance of the proposed effort.”  
QUESTION:  There is no space on the Attachment 3 form for this, and what specifically is 
required since each task order may be different. 

See updated Attachment 0003 and L.5.2.1(b)(1) 

Please confirm that the Government contract number is NOT necessary in Line 3 if the 
contract was performed as a subcontractor.  Should we enter "N/A" if it is not required?

Confirmed.  It is acceptable to enter "N/A"

Questions:
N/A

·      Please provide the correct File Name for L.5.1.5(a) The file name has been updated to Offerors_Name_PMP

·      Should L.5.2.2(c) be L.5.2.3? Also, the file name requested references a Volume 
2 and there does not appear to be volumes in the RFP.

No,  L.5.2.2(c) should not be L.5.2.3 2.  Of note, the BOE is a separate document that is not included in the page count of the RSE.  
Volume 2 has been removed from the naming convention.

·      Please confirm the correct PWS item numbers; there appears to be two PWS 
2.1.5's.  The following notes in parentheses what we believe to be the correct 
numbers, is this correct? 

The PWS has been updated to renumber the duplicate 2.1.5's

Questions and Answers (Q and As) from Industry Based on 21 December 2016 Draft RFP
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Please confirm that Training is not one of the three functional requirements and where or if we 
are to address this in our reposnse. 

Training is not considered a functional area.  

Does the government expect position descriptions for non-exempt staff – or is the title 
enough?  If the government is expecting full position descriptions, can the page count be 
increased?

Offerors must define any proposed labor category that is not identified in the SCA Directory of Occupations 5th Edition.  The page 
count will not be increased.  See updated L.5.2.2(c)

The RFP states, "the RSE narrative must detail the offeror’s approach to plan, organize, 
facilitate, direct, control and execute maintenance operations specifically associated with the 
sample equipment density listing provided at TE 1."   Since every Task Order is different, 
along with a specific TE 1, it is unclear what is specifically requested here for the BOA.  Can 
the government elaborate?

While it is true that every Task Order is different, the BOA RFP is also "different" in that it has provided a sample equipment 
density along with specific maintenance operations that are required for proposal purposes.  Therefore, utilize the equipment density 
and the language in L.5.2.2(b)(1) to formulate your BOA proposal.  If awarded a BOA, the Task Orders RFPs will be specific to the 
requirements during each Task Order Request for Proposal (RFP). 

It is correct for Block 3 of Attachment #0003 that if a subcontract is being cited we are to 
place the prime contractor's subcontract number to the subcontractor and not the prime's 
contract number with the Government?

If providing a subcontractor reference, "N/A" is an appropriate response for this block.

RFP L.5.2.4(b) states "If an offeror proposes recent and/or relevant experience for a parent 
company, affiliate, subcontractor, or another team member with a different CAGE code, the 
offeror shall include information demonstrating how the resources of the parent company, 
affiliate, or subcontractor will be utilized in performance of the proposed effort. " but it is 
unclear which block on Attachment #003 this data is to be placed. Please clarify.

See updated Attachment 0003 and L.5.2.1(b)(1) 

RFP L.5.2.4(c.)(12) states "note that this field is limited to 1,800 characters".  It is unclear if 
spaces and punctuation marks are included in the 1800 count. Please clarify if space and 
punctuation marks do not count in the 1800.

Yes, all characters to including spaces count.

Would the Government please consider returning to the EAGLE I BOA RFP limit for Block 
12 of 400 words versus 1800 characters?

No, not at this time.  However, the character count has been incerased to the maximum extent possible.

Depicting organization diagrams generally are in graphic form which does not allow 
searchable text. Will the Government consider excluding this requirement for diagrams or is it 
the Government intention for the Offeror to insert in Power Point format which does allow text 
to be searchable, which are not as pleasing as though as those in a graphic software (and take 
up more space)? Would add the PowerPoint graphics are not as pleasing as those generating in 
graphics software (and take up more space)

The Organizational Structure is not required to be Text Searchable Adobe PDF (reference L.5.2.3(a)(2).  As indicated at L.5.2(a) 
only those submissions indicated as "Text Searchable Adobe PDF" are required to be so.  Those that are identified as "Adobe PDF" 
do not require text searchability.

Will the Government clarify that the page count has changed to 20? Updated accordingly.
Will the Government clarify that the Offeror must provide a BOE for the funtional areas in 
L.5.2.2 (b)(1) through L.5.2.2(b)(4) or does the Government prefer the BOE to depict the 
functionl areas of maintenace, supply and transportation?

The RFP has been updated to indicate (b)1 through (b)4.

Will the Government please clarify the DRFP paragraph numbers are actually L.5.2.2(b)(2) 
through L.5.2.2(b)(4)?

Confirmed. Error has been corrected.

Will the governemnt consider extending the RSE to 15 pages in lieu of 13 pages? The Government has increased the RSE to 14 pages in lieu of 13

Per the summary of changes issued in BOA draft (2) the (TCS) has been extended to 20 pages 
bullet # 4, however per section L of the RFP still reads 16 pages. Please clarify

Corrected.

N/A
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This is a requirment for "text Searchable Adobe PDF" with the revised Attachment _0003 now 
is requiring the signature from the subcontractor. It is unclear how this can still be searchable 
text. Please clarify how this is to be accompliished to remain compliant.

Corrected.

During the industry day Q&A (and on slide #45) we are instructed to leave no blanks and to 
fill in N/A. If you are not a JV must we still submit a document in response to L.5.1.4(d)(i) 
saying we are not a JV or just N/A  on a sheet or can this be omitted from submittal?

If an offeror is not proposing a JV, the file OfferorName_JV is not required. 

The revised instructions in L.5.2.2(b)(3) for the Supply Functional Area only seems to require 
a discussion of SSA, CIPBO and asset accountability and visibility throught the use of the 
LIS. This seems to imply that the other PWS Supply Function Area Tasks such as CIF [PWS 
2.2.2], CIIP [PWS 2.2.3], SSMO [PWS 2.2.4], Hazmat [PWS 2.2.6], Bulk Fuels/Aircraft 
Refueling [PWS 2.2.7], and  ASP [PWS 2.2.8] are not to be addressed in the RSE repsonse 
for the Supply Functional Area.  Is this correct? Please clarify.

Yes.  That is correct.  The RSE is a small section of the PWS that is considered by the Government "representative" to support 
similar efforts in future Task Orders.  

The revised instructions in L.5.2.2(b)(4) for the Transportation Functional Area only seems to 
require a discussion of PPSO and the TMP with their sub tasks. This seems to imply that the 
other PWS Transportation Function Area Tasks such as Unit Movement [PWS 2.3.3], 
Material Movement [PWS 2.3.4], A/DACG [PWS 2.3.5], Container Yard [PWS 2.3.6],  Rail 
Head [PWS 2.3.7] and MCT [PWS 2.3.8]  are not to be addressed in the RSE repsonse for the 
Transportation Functional Area.  Is this correct? Please clarify.

Yes.  That is correct.  The RSE is a small section of the PWS that is considered by the Government "representative" to support 
similar efforts in future Task Orders.  

The instructions in L.5.2.2(c.) seem to imply that only non-exempt, non-supervisory labor 
categories need to be discussed and justified in the BOE. Is it correct that no exempt 
managerial or non-exempt supervisory  are to be disucssed in this BOE staffing rationale? 
What was stated as a the Government response in the Industry Day Briefing Slide #37 does 
not seem to have been updated as it said it would be. Please clarify.

See updated L.5.2.2(c)

L.5.2.2.(b)(2) states "Additionally, the RSE narrative must accurately address the specific 
Army Logistics Information Systems (LIS) being utilized,..." Becuase there are several 
potential Maintenance LIS's [SAMS-E, SAMS-1E, SAMS-2E, SAMS-IE, GCSS-A] in use at 
different Army posts it unclear how we are to know which one is being used at the hypothical 
post for us to address. Please clarify.

Any Army maintenance LIS that is currently in service (NOT ULLS-G for instance) is acceptable as long as the described usage is 
accurate.

Para M.2.6 states that "the offeror must submit at least one (and no more than three) recent 
and relevant contract references for each of the three functional areas (Maintenance, Supply 
and Transportation) for a total of no more than nine contract references." We agree that 3 
references is sufficient for those functional areas we self-perform.  However, if SBs determine 
that we need to identify one or more subcontractors to fully qualify  for a particular task within 
a functional area, we will fall short of the ability to fully account for all tasks, because we will 
likely need more than 2 of our own past performance references, beyond the Sub Contractor 
we are bidding.  This is critical for Small Business's, who may have past performance 
contracts that were not enterprise level efforts, but instead cover specific stand alone functional 
areas (i.e. Ammunition Supply, Warehousing, Property Book Spt, PPSO).  By narrowing the 
amount of past perf references to 3 for a functional area, the Gov't is forcing SB BOA offerors 
to either take risk in  their abilities to self perform, or to utilize LB teammates (vs SB), 
because their past performance qualifications can cover larger portions of functional work.  
Will the Gov't consider re-assessing their approach to the Experience area, and allow for 
Small Business bidders to submit more than 3  past performance references if they are using a 
SB Sub contrcator to account for a narrow function(s) within a Functional Area?   

See the top block of the Experience Matrix and L.5.2.2(b)(2) through L.5.2.2(b)(4)  to identify what needs to be submitted.  NOTE:  
Not ALL PWS paragraphs require experience.

The language in the BOE evvaluation instructions appears to be asking for more than is 
possible.  We agree that offerors can show an understanding of the labor categories and 
positions that are required to meet the make up of the RSE. We also agree that they can and 
should be relatable to the Organizational Structure depeicted by the offeror.  However, we 
beleive it is a stretch to assume that responses will show an "accurate analysis of the effort, 
realistic assumptions and appropriate staffing decisions..." That appears to us to be criteria 
that would be asscoiated with staffing numbers (FTEs) etc.  Will the Governent consider 
restating the requirement and the criteria to more appropriately detail the generic information 
the Govt intends to review?

FTE numbers are not required for this submission; only the specific labor cateogries it is proposing to perform the effort along with 
the rationale (reference langauge in L.5.2.2(c)).  The Government does not see the requirement to revise the language at this time.
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The Govt states that it will assess offerors ability to meet the Maintenance and Supply 
Functional areas by "accurately and correctly address[ing] the specific Army Logistics 
Information Systems (LIS) being utilized" [M.2.4] and identifying the "proper operation of the 
specific LIS for the equipment density listing provided at TE 1." [M.2.4 (c)].  Given the 
unknown as to whether the sample RSE is resourced with the newest, legacy or a combination 
of LIS, offerors are left to make an assumptions.  Will the Government consider adding the 
specific LIS enabling systems available to the RSE organization?   

Any Army maintenance LIS that is currently in service (NOT ULLS-G for instance) is acceptable as long as the described usage is 
accurate.

In accordance with the RFP, offerors must adequately demonstrate how the resources of the 
parent company or affiliate company will be utilized in the performance of the proposed effort 
in addition to sufficient information for the Government to determine contract references as 
recent and relevant. However, Attachment 0003 only allows for 1,800 characters, which 
severley impacts companies to present experience from affiliates. Would the Government 
consider removing the demonstration of how parent company or affiliate experience will be 
utilized from Attachment 0003 and add the requirement to Corporate Organizational Structure 
or provide a separate document for this affiliation to be described in detail?

The character count has been increased to provide increased space.

If an offeror identifies experience of another company/legal entity (whether it be a parent 
company, an affiliate, or a company being proposed as a subcontractor), the offeror’s 
Experience Matrix (Attachment 0003) will be reviewed to ensure the offeror has verified that 
it has said company’s permission to submit the contract reference information as part of its 
proposal. If the offeror does not have the required permission, the reference will not be 
evaluated. Will a positive statement of permission within Attachment 0003 satisfy this 
requirement?

The Attachment 0003 has been updated to include a self certification.

"….primary task areas identified in Section C-2 of the PWS…" Is Section C-2 (stated in the 
RFP) and Section 2.0 of Attachment 0001 one and the same?

Yes.  The RFP has been updated to read Section 2.0 in lieu of C-2.

There is an apparent typographical error in that PWS numbers 2.1.5 and 2.1.6 are used twice 
in the PWS. Request clarification for PWS numbering.

PWS duplicates have been renumbered.

This file name includes "Vol 1", however most other documents do not reference a Volume 
number. Request clarifiation for use of Volume numbers in files.

References to "Vol" have been removed.

This file name includes "Vol 2", however most other documents do not reference a Volume 
number. Request clarifiation for use of Volume numbers in files.

References to "Vol" have been removed.

This schedule released on 3 Dec. 2016 indicates that a BOAs  will be released in FYs17-23.  
Will that be under EAGLE II and is the EAGLE II RFP still anticipated to be released in Jan. 
2017?

N/A

On page 13 the PWS started to re-number itself after PWS 2.1.6, it went back to PWS 2.1.5.  
Therefore all Maintenance Functional area PWS numbers after 2.1.6 appear to be in error. 
This adds confusion when making PWS references. Request this be reviewed.

PWS duplicates have been renumbered.

L.5.2.2.(c) says "The offeror's BOE must demonstrate a thorough understanding of the effort 
through its analysis of the effort, realistic assumptions and staffing decisions in order to 
successfully perform the PWS requirements associated with the maintenance, supply and 
transportation functional areas identified at L.5.2.2(b)(1) through L.5.2.2(b)(3). The BOE 
must address specific labor categories required to perform the effort, the rationale for their 
selection, and must fully support the proposed Corporate Organizational Structure." It this 
BOE with specific labor categores only to meet the equipment density shown in Attachment A 
or for labor categories needed to meet all of the PWS document (Attachment 0001 BOA PWS 
9-11-16) even if such equipment is not in Attachment A ? Please clarify.

The Equipment Density is specific to maintenance staffing only; reference L.5.2.2(b)(2).  Therefore, for the Maintenance functional 
area BOE, the offeror needs to address the skillsets required to meet the Equipment Density provided.

This has typically been an LPTA. How will the National Defense Authorization Act of 2017 
directing more limited use of Low Price Technically Acceptable (LPTA) procurements impact 
the EAGLE BOA?

As noted during the Industry Day briefing, the Government's intent is to not address the pathforward on upcoming task order 
evaluation processes at this time, as the Task Order RFP language is being reviewed for the follow-on EAGLE effort and is subject 
to change. The Government will ensure the source selection process is completed  in an effective and appropriate manner.
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Recommend Government change recent to 5 years vice 3 years to determine recency. (1) The 5-
year period covered by the current EAGLE BOA has resulted in many companies not being 
able to obtain a task order for the past 4+ years given the number of companies vice the 
number of opportunities. (2) Managing and operating an L:RC is essentially a well 
establuished practice that, althoug changes occur, do not consist of a knowledge or experience 
base that would be radically different after 5 years vice 3 years. (3) Executive Order 13495 
mandates the hiring of the incumbent work force so there is no loss of current practices and 
requirements when the contractor changes over to a different company. (4) Companies have 
employees who have many years of experience while in uniform - many for 20+ years (e.g. 
retired CSM, MSG, COL etc) - as logisticians that knowledge and experience simply does not 
evaporate with the passage of 3 years.  While experience may be a critical requirement when 
designing a new weapon system or other innovative requirement the operation of existing 
services with existing personnel virtualy eliminates experience as a reliable factor in 
evaluating a company's ability to perform the work at an LRC. 

The recency requirements for experience will remain at 3 years.

With the definition as provided resulting in the high expectation that all LSS opportunities 
may be supported by viable small business, will the Government consider leaving key LSS 
power projection platforms (i.e. Benning, Bragg, Campbell, Bliss) for full & open competition 
due to their strategic importance?

No response required.

If a offeror is awarded a BOA under it's CAGE, can they also compete and be awarded a BOA 
under a JV CAGE?

Yes as long as the JV submits an acceptable proposal for the BOA RFP

Will the Government consider changing the recency requirements from 3 to 5 years?
The recency requirements for experience will remain at 3 years.

Some of the file names indicate including the Volume (e.g., Offeror's_Name_Vol_1_PMP), 
while other naming conventions in General Documents and Technical do not (e.g., 
OfferorsName_TCS). Should we include the Volume in the title of all files, or follow section 
L?

The volume reference has been removed from the naming structure

If an offeror is not proposing a JV, should the offeror submit the file OfferorName_JV and 
indicate that it is not pursuing a JV? 

If an offeror is not proposing a JV, the file OfferorName_JV  is not required. 

L.5.2.2(c) Labor Basis of Estimate (BOE) states "The offeror must provide its labor basis of 
estimate, in narrative format, in relation to the BOA PWS requirements associated with the 
maintenance, supply, and transportation functional areas identified at L.5.2.2(b)(1) through 
L.5.2.2(b)(3)." Should this reference be L.5.2.2(b)(1) through L.5.2.2(b)(4)? Or are only the 
Maintenance, Supply, and Transportation functions (L.5.2.2(b)(2) through L.5.2.2(b)(4)) to 
be covered? NOTE: This question also applies to M.2.4(e).

This reference should be L.5.2.2(b)(1) through L.5.2.2(b)(4).  Section L was updated accordingly.

The Labor BOE is limited to 4 pages. Please consider increasing to 10 pages? There is no page count increase at this time.

L.5.2.4(b) Experience states "The offeror must provide its recent and relevant experience, as a 
measure of the likelihood to ensure proper execution, of all three functional areas 
(Maintenance, Supply and Transportation) as identified at L.5.2.2(b)(1) through 
L.5.2.2(b)(3)."  Should these paragraph references read L.5.2.2(b)(2) through L.5.2.2(b)(4)?

Yes.  Section L has been revised to read  L.5.2.2(b)(2) through L.5.2.2(b)(4)

M.2.3(a)(1)  states "Entities identified to perform a specific functional area must provide 
corresponding experience as detailed in Section M.2.2.6." However, there is no section 
M.2.2.6. Please provide the correct reference.

M.2.2.6 has been changed to M.2.6

Please note there are two paragraphs numbered 2.1.5 and two paragraphs numbered 2.1.6. For 
compliance purposed in writing proposal responses, please correct.

This has been corrected.

Please note there is no paragraph 2.1.11.1 or 2.1.11.2. Have these been omitted? The paragraphs were not omitted.  The numbering has been corrected.
Should the account reconciliation metric be 98% rather than 998%? Yes.  PWS has been updated to read 98%
Paragraph 2.3.1.30 references CDRL ITD-01, Transportation Statistical Data Report. This 
CDRL has not been provided with the draft documents. Will this CDRL be provided with the 
final documents?

CDRL removed

The PWS skips from 2.3.4 to 2.3.4.2 and 2.3.5 to 2.3.5.2. Please provide the missing 
paragraphs or renumber the remaining paragraphs.

These paragraphs have been renumbered.  There are no missing paragraphs.

Please note there is no paragraph 2.3.8.1. Has it been omitted? 2.3.8.1 has been updated to read "RESERVED" as it was unintentionally omitted
Are there no specific metrics for Transportation, unlike Maintenance and Supply? The PWS 
specifies a list of reports and documents rather than key indicators.

There are no specific metrics.

If an Offeror has not entered into a JV, does the offeror need to submit a document stating 
there is no JV relationship or is the OfferorName_JV document requirement waived?

If an offeror is not proposing a JV, the file OfferorName_JV  is not required. 
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Section L.5.2 Technical Factor identies four technical capability sections the offeror needs to 
meet; Technical Capability Statement (TCS), Representative Support Element (RSE), 
Corporate Organizational Structure  and Experience. Within the Representative Support 
Element section, the Draft RFP includes a Labor Basis of Estimate (BOE) document. Is the 
four page BOE document part of the 13 page RSE document, or is the BOE a seperate 
technical document?

The four page BOE document is NOT part of the 14 page RSE document; it is it's own document.

Will the Government accept Maintenance, Supply and Transporation Experience that's been 
demonstrated with other Department of Defense Agencies besides the U.S. Army? 

Yes, the Government will evaluate experience demonstrated with other Department of Defense agencies besides the U.S. Army.

Can the contractor reference multiple task orders under 1 Government Prime Contract to 
demonstrate recent and relevant experience

No

Section M.2.6 (first paragraph) says "… to determine if the offeror would be able to 
successfully execute the requirements as identified in L.5.2.2.2(b)(1) through L.5.2.2.2(b)(3)." 
This seems to imply that the offeror must with the  three allowed citations for each functional 
area (Maintenance,  Supply and Transportation) show they have experience in ALL the PWS 
sub tasks for each functional area. Maintenance has 21 (PWS 2.1.1-2.1.21, Supply has 10  
PWS 2.2.1-2.2.10, and Transportation has 10 PWS 2.3.1-2.3.10)  yet Attacchment 0003 
seems to says you only need to have a minimum of 2 of these sub tasks addressed on each 
citation which would be 6 sub tasks total for an area.  Please clarify if ALL PWS sub-tasks in 
each of the 3 Functional areas must have experience shown for them.

See the top block of the Experience Matrix and L.5.2.2(b)(2) through L.5.2.2(b)(4)  to identify what needs to be submitted.  NOTE:  
Not ALL PWS paragraphs require experience submissions.

Please clarify if an offeror provides 3 citations per functional area (Maint., Supply & 
Transportation) with the minimum required two sub-tasks, for a total of only 6 sub-tasks 
addressed, regardlesss of the actual number of sub-tasks shown in the BOA PWS, that this is 
considered acceptable and addditonal sub-tasks need not be adddressed with relevant 
experience?

Each submission may include more than one sub task.  

We understand that we are to provide up to 3 references per functional area.  What is not clear 
is that if the contractor needs to show experience in EVERY SINGLE SUB-ELEMENT of the 
PWS functional area within the breadth of the 3 references. For example, if we are missing 
experience in one sub-element (Railhead operations, PWS 2.3.7, for example), but have 
contracts showing experience spanning the breadth of the functional area otherwise, do we 
need to provide an Experience Matrix Form for a subcontractor just to show experience with 
that single sub-element?  Please confirm that it is the government’s intention to use this as a 
reference only and to show our capability in performing and managing the types of work and 
that every PWS sub-element does not need to be shown across all 9 forms.

No, Offerors must demonstrate through their cited core competencies and their cited previous experience supporting those core 
competencies that it can effectively perform each functional area.  See the top block of the Experience Matrix and L.5.2.2(b)(2) 
through L.5.2.2(b)(4)  to identify what needs to be submitted.  NOTE:  Not ALL PWS paragraphs require experience submissions.

If we are to demonstrate experience in every single functional area sub-element across the 
breadth of 3 forms, please consider adding pages / space to the form to accommodate that.  
The PWS for Maintenance alone has approximately 20 elements and would necessitate 
breaking up meaningful contract descriptions just to use the space judiciously.  Just citing the 
PWS reference alone takes up considerable space.  Again, please confirm that collectively we 
do not have to cite experience in every sub-element of the PWS across all 9 forms.  

No, Offerors must demonstrate through their cited core competencies and their cited previous experience supporting those core 
competencies that it can effectively perform each functional area.  See the top block of the Experience Matrix and L.5.2.2(b)(2) 
through L.5.2.2(b)(4)  to identify what needs to be submitted.  NOTE:  Not ALL PWS paragraphs require experience submissions.

The first functional area only, Maintenance, has the statement “Previous experience must have 
performed at least two distinct functions of Army maintenance simultaneously (i.e., filed level 
maintenance and production control.)”   Please confirm that at least two examples are 
necessary in Block 11 and that they can be the same types of examples in the other two forms 
for that functional area.  For example, within one Functional Area, we can have the same 
examples in all three without covering every sub-element..

That is correct.  Of note, offerors don't have to submit 3 separate references if they have adequately covered the requirement in 1 or 2 
references.

Please confirm that Block 11 of the Supply and Transportation Experience Matrix Forms also 
require at least two examples of sub-elements performed concurrently.

See the top block of the Experience Matrix and L.5.2.2(b)(2) through L.5.2.2(b)(4)  to identify what needs to be submitted.
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QUESTION ANSWER

Within each functional area there numerous PWS subsections described in at least 20 pages.  
Do contractors need to show the entire span of experience across every single one of those 
PWS subsections across 3 forms for that functional area? Or, is it sufficient to show the types 
of work as a  "measure of the likelihood to ensure proper execution..." as stated in L.5.2.4(b) 
without getting into that level of detail given such limited space? 

No, Offerors must demonstrate through their cited core competencies and their cited previous experience supporting those core 
competencies that it can effectively perform each functional area.  See the top block of the Experience Matrix and L.5.2.2(b)(2) 
through L.5.2.2(b)(4)  to identify what needs to be submitted.  NOTE:  Not ALL PWS paragraphs require experience submissions.

Is a contractor who currently has a BOA required to submit a new proposal or can the existing 
BOA be renewed?

A new proposal must be submitted.

This requires that specific labor catagories must be addressed by the Contractor. How is a 
Contractor supposed to address this requirement without a specific workload or will the Final 
RFP contain a sample TO where the workload is provided?

Refer to the RSE RFP L.5.2.2(b)(1) through L.5.2.2(b)(4) language and propose labor categories specific to those areas identified in 
the RFP.

Is the page count for the BOE (4 pages) included in the page count for the RSE (13 pages)?
The four page BOE document is NOT part of the 14 page RSE document; it is it's own document.

This requires that the Contractor identifies the tasks that the Offeror and subcontractor(s) will 
perform. How is a Contractor supposed to address this requirement without a specific 
workload or will the Final RFP contain a sample TO where the workload is provided?

Refer to the RSE RFP L.5.2.2(b)(1) through L.5.2.2(b)(4) language and propose labor categories specific to those areas identified in 
the RFP.

This requires that the Contractor identifies the leads, supervisors, management, etc, that will 
be used. How is a Contractor supposed to address this requirement without a specific 
workload or will the Final RFP contain a sample TO where the workload is provided?

Refer to the RSE RFP L.5.2.2(b)(1) through L.5.2.2(b)(4) language and propose labor categories specific to those areas identified in 
the RFP.
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